
United Nations TEE
THIRD COMMITTEE 299th

GENERAL t.,~' . ~ MEETING

A~SEMBLY
!950,

~ if?
....-;r~ Tuesday, 31 October 1950, at 3 p.m.

FIFTH SESSION
IJ, N~

Official Records Lake Success, New York

CONTENTS
Page

Draft first international covenant on human rights and measures of imple­
mentation (A/1384, A/C.3/534, A/C.3/535 and E/1681) (continued) 185

Chairman: Mr. G. J. VAN HEUVEN GOEDHART (Netherlands).

up a
lferen
hat t1
tion (

lope
;le ql
~ tha

AI

ence
Its a(
'ee 01

feren
; wal
lfere:
ad la
JUpat
, it ,
.e 1 j
:e. T
lctica
!s.

:ed fl
·lght
i by
r to i

eque

.Ire tc
.. ·)mic
:ld it .

to r
• Mo
it ap
ce wc
head
;ecrel
lferel

A/C.3/SR,299

quired, the Committee should ask itself how large a
majority of its members would be able to approve the
draft at the following session, how many would be able
to sign and how many to ratify. Unless a new approach
was found, it seemed that members would be fairly
equally divided on the first question.

5. It had been argued that the number of initial sig­
natures was unimportant; that others would gradually
accede by force of example. A covenant on human
rights was not, however, on the same level as a techni­
cal convention; it was something much more lofty and
concerned the cause of international peace much more
closely.

6. There was a real danger that the covenant 011

human rights might actually augment the causes of
international dispute. Although the word "covenant"
gave the impression that something sacrosanct was in­
tended, a covenant in fact was merely a convention and
had only the status of a treaty. If relatively unimpor­
tant technical conventions gave rise to disputes, such a
sweeping document would be likely to catlse even
greater contention. Breaches of the covenant would
take place within the domestic jurisdiction of States;
complaints would, therefore, be regarded as infringe­
ments of national sovereignty and there would probably
be no means of obtaining redress without causing inter­
national disputes. That was no imaginary danger; the
Commission on Human Rights had already received
hundreds of petitions and complaints from individuals
invoking the Universal Declaration of Human Rights.
A covenant signed at the existing stage of deve]op111ent~
in international relations might, therefore, not only fatl
to protect human rights but might become the direct,
cause of an increase in international tension. Until
there was some method of controlling a State's domestic
behaviour without infringing its sovereignty, the pro­
vision of disciplinary measures appeared to be prema-
ture.
7. The Committee seemed to have failed to em;is~ge
that aspect of the problem clearly; ~oth the C?l1lmlSSlO!l
on Human Rights and the EconomIc and Socml CounCIl

185

*Indicate th .s e Item number on the General Assembly agenda.

Draft first international covenant on human rights
and measures of implementation (A/1384, AI
C.3/534, A/C.3/535 and E/1681) (continued)

[Item 631 *
1. Mr. CHANG (China) noted that four main con-

, troversial issues had developed in the debate on the
desirability of including special articles on economic,
social and cultural rights in the draft first internation;;1
covenant on human rights: the relative importance of
individual rights and economic and social rights, the
relative priority to be given to the latter, the relative
complexity of defining them and the relative urgency
of including them in the first draft covenant.

2. The French representative had produced a solution
of the question of rela1ive urgency by proposing (298th
meeting) that two separate covenants should be pre­
pared simultaneously before the sixth session of the
General Assembly. The principal difficulty inherent in
such a solution, admirable as it was in intention, was
that it would be extremely difficult to obtain general
agreement on the choice of the economic, social and
cultural rights to be included in a separate covenant.

3, He wondered, however, whether there were really
cogent arguments for speed in drafting and adopting the
covenant before the Committee. Urgency had been more
or less ~ssumed on the ground that, the Universal
Declar~tlOn of Human Rights having only a moral
force, It must be supplemented as soon as possible by
a covenant .with mandatory force, if human rights ,vere
to. be effectively protected. The Commission on Human
RIghts ~ad wisely decided to begin by preparing the
D~c!arat1on rather than the draft covenant, as had
ongmally been proposed; but every effort must be made
t~ see that the covenant did not detract from the value
f the Declaration, which had already acquired greater
orce and prestige than had been expected.

\ .Before it accepted the assumption that the com­
pebon of the draft covenant was really urgently re--



186 General Assembly-Fifth Session-Third Committee

should be asked to take that view into account before
they proceeded further with the preparation of the draft
covenant on human rights.
8. Mrs. MENON (India) said that she did. not share
the Chinese representative's misgivings. She did, how­
ever have serious misgivings about the implications of
the 'Mexican representative's remarks at the 2~8th
meeting to the effect that political rights were meamng­
less without economic and social rights.
9. It was essential that a special article should be
written into the existing draft of the covenant specificaIly
guaranteeing the pa;rti:ipation of all ci~izens in 1?oli~ical
life on an equal baSIS, III accordance WIth the pnncIples
of the Charter and the Universal Declaration of Human
Rights. The absenc.e. of s~lch. a~ ar!icle mi.ght be used
as a pretext for pohttcal dlscnmmat!on aga111st women;
and it was noteworthy, in regard to the Mexican repre­
sentative's statement, that women in Mexico did not
have the right to vote in national elections. Even Bel­
gium and France, whose delegations had boasted of the
extent to which human rights were protected in those
countries, had granted votes to women only within the
past few years.
10. When the Indian delegation had supported the in­
clusion of articles on economic, social and cultural
rights in the Declaration, it had been fully aware - as
it still was - that they must also be embodied in a
legally binding instrument. It was prepared, however,
to await their inclusion in a subsequent, separate cove­
nant, not because it believed them to be less important
than the rights embodied in the first eighteen articles,
but because any delay in enforcing the basic individual
rights should not be countenanced.

11. She could not agree with the United Kingdom
representative's view that the illusion that a gesture
alone would suffice to transform the structure of States
from top to bottom should be combated; such a gesture
had in recent times transformed the spirit and structure
of a government.

12. The main argument for including the proposed
articles only in a later covenant, however, was the more
practical one that it would require considerable time to
obtain approval of the first eighteen articles, although
theX embodied only the basic rights without which no
civtlized society could exist. They concerned rights for
the violation of which there were legal remedies and
upon which there was a consensus of agreement. There
was, however, no direct legal remedy for the violation
of economic and social rights and no existing machinery
for their protection and enforcement. Their effectiveness
depended rather on the extent to which governments
honoured their obligations and they might also entail
material and financial commitments which it would be
beyond the power of many governments to fulfil.
13. All governments should, however, strive to imple­
ment such rights; her own government was already
doing so. She cited in evidence articles from the Direc­
tive Principles of State Policy in part IV of the Indian
Constitution, particularly article 39.
14. Her delegation was sceptical about the amount of
help available from the specialized agencies. The real
effectiveness of the many conventions prepared by the
International Labour Organisation was less impressive
than their number. That showed that economic rights

embodied in various conventions became relatively
meaningless unless all hu~an rig.hts f~ll into a single
integrated pattern. The baSIS of. nghts In ILO .conven­
tions was protection, not equahty of opport';1mty. For
example, the immediate effect of the conventIon on t~e

abolition of night work for women had been the dIS­
charge of a large number of telephone. operators; but
ILO had shown little concern to prOVIde other work
for them.
15. The only way to reme~y such injusti~e ~as to
include the principle of equabty of opportumty 111 the
covenant. The International Labour Organisation and
other specialized agencies need not fear that th~t would
restrict their progra~es or sphe~e~ of aC~lOn: The
work of defining that tight and p~ovIdtng for Its ~m?le­
mentation would remain the provl11ce of the specrahzed
agencies. Nor need ILO fear that a statement of general
principles woul~ not pro~de ~dequat~ly for the exten­
sion of economIC and socral nghts; It would act as a
stimulus and have great educative value and moral
force.
16. Much of the social unhappiness consequent upon
the ratification of the ILO conventions might have been
avoided had the modern expanded conception of. so~ial
justice been taken into due account. That orgamzatl0n
was compelled by its Constitution to represent the three
differing interests of government, of workers and of
employers. In consequence, despite years of discussi~m,

it had not been able even to approach the preparation
of a convention on equal pay for equal work; the
employers were against that.
17. The drafting of articles on economic, social and
cultural rights must not, therefore, suffer any delay as
a result of negotiation with the specialized agencies
although priority should be given to the completion of
the draft covenant on individual and political rights
pending the drafting of a second covenant.

18. Mr. KOUSSOFF (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist
Republic) maintained that the draft covenant would be
meaningless and a disappointment to people genera~ly
if it failed to include articles on such economic, SOCial
and cultural rights as the right to leisure, education,
decent housing, social security and the equal treatment
of men and women.

19. Certain delegations had stated that those rights
were already embodied in their constitutions; if so, they
should welcome their inclusion in the draft covenant.
The Iraqi representative had, however, correctly ob­
served (298th meeting) that it was precisely those dele­
gations which opposed their inclusion in the first draft
covenant.

20. The argument that there would not be time to
examine the articles relating to economic and social
rights thoroughly before the draft covenant was sub­
mitted to the General Assembly at its sixth session
was not convincing; there was a whole year for such
discussion. That wa.s ample time to see to the inclusion
of articles, the desirability of which, in principle, had
not been questioned.
21. Such an attempt at delay constituted a violation
not only of the relevant provisions of the United
Nations Charter but also of General Assembly resolu­
tion 217 E (Ill). That resolution, moreover, did not
refer to a series of covenants, but to a single covenant;

and thE
rights,
tura!. P
econom
an atte
the mn
rights
econorr

22. U
all poI:
guaran
the 29
mentec
social;
for 19:
devote,

23. A
to his
repres l

UkraiI
other'
tries ~

as the
those
agree
protec
draft

24, I
tion Q

to be
delay
eighte
ment
articlE
would
speci~

Right
year "
postp'
articli

25.
right!
techn
vital:
embci
that:
consil
of thl
of th!
of tH
could
men­
been
be c~

ing ~1

26. !
right
limitl
prot~

menl
full )
soda
soda
in ti



299th Meeting-31 October 1950 187

:vely
ngle
ven­
For
tthe
dis­
but

\Fork

s to
the

and
ould
The
lple­
ized
leral
ten­
as a
loral

lpon
been
Jcial
otion
hree
1 of
lion,
,tion

the

and
yas
lcies
n of
ghts

alist
i be
:ally
>cial
:ion,
r1ent

ghts
they
.ant.
ob-

!e1e­
raft

~ to
.ciaI
mb­
5ion
uch
lion
had

tion
ited
:>lu­
not
l11t j

and the single covenant must embody all basic human
rights, individual, political, economic, social and cul­
tural. Any attempt to oppose the inclusion of articles on
economic and social rights might well be construed as
an attempt to avoid the granting of all basic rights to
the mass of people, because the individual and political
rights were meaningless if not supplemented by the
economic and social.

22. Under the Constitution of the Byelorussian SSR
all political, economic, social and cultural rights were
guaranteed. He had quoted the relevant provisions at
the 296th meeting. That evidence could be comple­
mented by the figures showing the appropriations for
social and cultural purposes in the Byelorussian budget
for 1950; 65.7 per cent of the whole budget had been
devoted to such purposes.

23. Appropriations of that magnitude were not peculiar
to his country; at the 2,98th meeting, the Ukrainian
representative had given very similar figures for the
Ukrainian budget and much the same was true of the
other Republics of the USSR. Obviously, not all coun­
tries had reached a similar level of social advancement,
as their economic and political structures differed from
those of the USSR; but all countries could afford to
agree to the inclusiop of t;1inimum provisi?ns f~r the
protection of economIC, SOCIal and cultural nghts m the
draft covenant, regardless of their social' structure.

24. Mr. KOHN (Israel) remarked that the elabora­
tion of articles on economic, social and cultural rights
to be included in the draft covenant would certainly
delay for an indefinite period the adoption of the first
eighteen articles, on which a large measure of agree­
ment had already been reached. The preparation of
articles dealing with economic, social and cultural rights
would requ(re exhaustive studies and submission to the
specialized agencies, to the Commission on Human
Rights and to the governments of Member States. One
year was clearly inadequate for that process; yet any
postponement of t~e adoption of the fir.st eigh~een
articles would be dIsastrous from every P0111t of VIew.

25. While inclusion of economic, social and cultural
rights in the draft first coven,ant was precl~ded for
technical reasons, every emphasIs should be laId on the
vital urgency of prepari!lg a supp~ementa~y covenant
embodying them. The V1ew, held 111 certam quarters,
that such rights were in the nature of a luxury to .be
considered at leisure was erroneous. The free exercIse
of them was in fact essential for the effective protection
of the individual rights contained in the eighteen articles
of the draft before the Committee. An illiterate person
could derive little benefit from the right to vote; only
men who were economically and socially free and had
been educated to exercise their own judgment would
be capable of maintaining civic freedom and of govern­
ing themselves by democratic processes.

26. The fact was that the guarantees ?f individual
rights contained in the first eighteen artIcles were of
limited value in normal times; they served largely to
protect minorities against arbitrary action by goven;­
ments and against the excesses of majority rule. TheIr
full value was felt only in times of political stress a1!'d
social transformation. The importance of economIC,
social and cultural guarantees, on the other hand, lay
in the impetus which they gave to the normal, steady

growth of civilized society. If they were phrased in
generally applicable and acceptable provisions, which
cOll1d be translated into workable legislative and ad­
ministrative measures, a long step would be taken to­
wards avoiding the tensions against which the first
eighteen articles were to act as a safeguard. The task
was complex and would have to be worked out by
progressive stages, but its successful completion would
be an important factor in the promotion of social and
international peace. .

27. Mr. BAROODY (Saudi Arabia) said that two
divergent views had become manifest in the course of
the debate. The majority was strongly in favour of the
inclusion in the covenant of guarantees of economic,
social and cultural rights. He agreed that with the help
of the specialized agencies and 'other expert bodies it
should be possible to formulate articles dealing with
such rights in time to include them in the first draft
covenant. Others, however, took the view that it was
inadvisable to burden the first covenant with articles
which, in view of the unequal development of various
countries, it would be difficult and perhaps impossible
to implement, and advised patience. Unfortunately, a
covenant such as they wanted would have no more
force than a declaration.

28. It was not surprising that most of those who took
that cautious position were representatives of colonial
Powers. It was plainly not in their interest to accelerate
the implementation of an effective covenant, since the
result in dependent territories might be to awaken the
population from its lethargy. Hence the representatives
of CQuntr,ies which themselves enjoyed the free exercise
of economic, social and cultural rights were unwilling
to extend the benefits of those rights to populations
which lived and laboured in a morass of backwardness.

29. If the colonial peoples, which were already seeth­
ing with unrest, were given a covenant which guaran­
teed political rights without providing economic and
social security, they would revolt and fight and w~uld
die fighting so that those who came after them mIght
at last live on tenns of equality with their fellow men.
It would be a tragedy if reform could be obtained only
through revolt.
30. He therefore appealed to those who had the means
of improving the lot of the c910nial peoples to share
their wealth and knowledge WIth them generously.and
of their own free will. Only then would, all nations
become partners in a progressive civilization based on
brotherly love.
31. Mr. I-IOFFMEISTER (Czechoslovakia) rec~lIed
that his delegation had already stated (290th meetmg)
that the first eighteen articles of the draft covenant
were neither adequate nor satisfactory. Like the ma­
jority of the sp~akers. wh~ had preceded him, he w.as
in favour of the mduslOn, 111 the covenant, of economIC,
social and cultural rights, which 'Y0uld make that ?OCl~­
men,t more satisfactory and effective and woqld bnng It
up to date.
32. The type of ri~hts w~ich was mo~t ~ssential
changed with a changing SOCI~ty. The baSIC ~Ights .of
contemporary society were plamly .t~e econon:I~, s.ocml
and cultural rights; most of the pohtIca} and CIVIl nghts
already included in the draft ~ovenal1t, I!1 fact, d;,pendcd
for their exercise on economIC and, SOCIal condItions.



188 General Assembly-Fifth Session-Third Committee

33. Mankind was still afflicted with illiteracy, unem­
ployment, hunger and need; scientific research was
misused for inhuman purposes, and tnte freedoms were
too often replaced by the false freedoms of misinforma­
tion, discrimination and incitement to war. Since the
corner-stones of modern society were work and educa­
tion, the right to both should be proclaimed in the
covenant. Among its provisions should be the right to
equal, compulsory and free basic education, the right
to creative expression, the freedom of scientific re­
search, the right to join trade unions with its con­
comitant rights, the right and dpty to work, the principle
of equal pay for equal work at fair wages, the right
of women to special privileges in connexion with preg­
nancy, maternity and child care, the right to leisure and
medical care, and old-age insurance. .

34. He urged the Committee to take a realistic view.
Unless the economic, social and cultural rights, which
would make all other rights effective, were included in
the covenant, there would result a document suitable,
perhaps, for past generations but wholly inadequate
for modern man.

35. Mr. SABA (United Natiolls Educational, Scien­
tific and Cultural Organization) said that articles 26
and 27 of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights
laid down a number of cultural principles, the attain­
ment of which was one of the main objectives of
UNESCO. In fact, one of the duties under its consti­
tution was to prepare special recommendations and con­
ventions on those subjects for submission to member
States. The organization had initiated a study of the
complex problems involved and its General Conference
had decided to transmit the results to the Secretary­
General and to various organs of the United Nations.
A pr~liminary report (E/1752 and Corr.1) had been
submitted to the Economic and Social Council. The
General Conference had also instructed the Director­
General of UNESCO to ensure the closest possible
collaboration with the Commission on Human Rights
in drafting articles on those principles for inclusion in
the covenant.
36. The preliminary report stated that in the view of
UNESCO, the covenant would be incomplete and
would fail to meet the aspirations of mankind if it
omitte~ provisi~ns covering economic, social and cul­
tural nghts, whIch had been sanctioned by the United
Nations in principle.

~7. He wi?hed to make it clear, however, that the
ImplementatiOn of all the principles contained in articles
26 and 27 of the Declaration could be achieved only by
means of a number of technical conventions which
c~lUld not ~e fonnulated i~mediately, and the prepara­
tion of which was, under Its Constitution, the task of
UNESCO. The problems ra~sed in article 26, para­
graph 1, al0I!-e would reqUIre several conventions.
Furthermore, Implementation by means of conventions
was not ~lways the best method. Thus, access to the
cultural Me of .the community, predicated in article 27
of the Declaration, was frequently not in the power of
governme?ts to. gr~nt and. could best be attained by
c.ollaboratlon WIth lllternatlOnal professional organiza­
tIons _. an approach employed by UNESCO in such
cases.

38. There was general agreement that economic cul­
tural and social rights should. be guaranteed by the

United Nations. The question was whether they should
be included in the draft first covenant or in a SUbse­
quent instntment. In his opinion, it would not be
possible in one year's time to prepare elementary pro­
visions dealing with cultural rights for inclusion in the
first covenant. If, however, it were decided to put such
provisions in later covenants, it should be rememhered
that the series of covenants would constitute an indi­
visible whole, as all the rights guaranteed by them
were interdependent and none had been ranked higher
than another in the Declaration.
39. It was plain, however, that such provisions must
be reduced to a minimum which could be generally
applicable. It would be difficult to translate the entire
potential content of articles 22 to 27 of the Declaration
into positive law. Much should be left for technical
conventions to be prepared by the specialized agencies,
whose competence had been recognized by the United
Nations as primary in their respective fields. Further­
more, formal reference should be made either in a
special resolution or, better still, in one of the articles
dealing with economic, social and cultural rights, to the
effect that those rights would be more fully implemented
by technical conventions to be elaborated by the special­
ized agencies.
40. Mr. RODRIGUEZ ARIAS (Argentina) reiter~

ated the appeal made by his delegation in 1948 for the
inclusion of economic, social and cultural rights. While
it was true that in practice some States might filld it
difficult to implement those rights because of technical
complexities, such obstacles should not discourage the
United Nations, whose duty it was to promote progress.

41. The example of Argentina itself showed that the
difficulties were not insuperable: its Constitution of
1949 guaranteed the economic, social and cultural
rights of the individual. Argentina had approached the
question entirely from the legal point of "iew, basing
itself on a realistic conception of the human being with
all his needs and aspirations. It had been possible to
guarantee those rights without encountering allY great
legal or practical difficulties. True, under-developed
countries which were still in the process of developing
their economy might find the operation less simple;
therefore, the United Nations must make every effort
to find a technical formula which would permit the
universal application of economic, social and cultural
rights.
42. He was convinced that none of the dominant po­
litical philosophies Was opposed to the granting of such
rights and he relied on the goodwill and common sense
of Member States not to attempt to divide the indivisible
by separating such rights from the political and civil
rights already included in the draft first covenant.
43. Mr. CASSIN (France) referred to the Polish
representative's comment at the 297th meeting on eer­
t~in charges and allegations made by the World Federa­
bon of Trade Unions about conditions in French West
Africa. The more important of the allegations had been
refuted by the French representative in the Economic
and Social Council. One of the most serious charges­
an allegation of the existence of forced labor - had
been based on a document which had been superseded
even before the charges were made. Forced labour had
been prohibited by a French law of 1946 which went
beyond international conventions. He would note in



299th Meeting-31 October 1950 189

::Juld
bse­

be
pro-
the

mch
ered
ndi­
hem
~her

nust
~lIy

ltire
.tion
lical
des,
lited
her­
o a
icIes
I the
nted
cial-

iter~

. the
'hile
Id it
lical
. the
ress.

the
1 of
:ural
: the
.sing
\\·ith
e to
~eat

)ped
ping
lple;
ffort

the
ural

po­
such
ense
;ible
civil

>lish
cer­
era­
Vest
)een
lnlic
s­
had
~ded

had
vent
~ in

passing that the WFTU representative who had made
the charges was himself a French citizen, a Negro, who
had of course been free to act as he did without fear
of discrimination or reprisal. That was a proof that
France respected human rights as well as international
institutions.
44. He feared that he had been misunderstood by the
representative of the Ukrainian SSR (298th meeting).
It had been his intention, not to criticize but to praise
the accomplishments of the USSR in the fight against
illiteracy. He had cited that struggle as evidence of the
fact that elimination of illiteracy could not be accom­
plished overnight. Far from desiring the continuation
of illiteracy, he ardently hoped for its early eradication.
His point was that it would not be enough simply to
reproduce the Universal Declaration of Human Rights
or the preamble to the Constitution of ILO but rather
that definite commitments must be made. No fewer
than forty ILO conventions and recommendations dealt
with the subject-matter covered in just one of the
articles of the Declaration. Clearly, the issues were very
complex and much time and thought were required to
bring true progress.

45. In the course of the debate some had argued that
the draft covenant need not include economic, social and
cultural rights, while others had expressed a contrary
opinion. He himself desired a positive conciliation of
the divergent points of view.

46. He had been impressed by the statement of the
ILO representative (298th meeting), which had been
largely an historical cirpose. He did not, however,
believe that a unilateral warning against encroaching
upon the sphere of action of ILO was enough. He
attached the greatest importance to the work and ex­
perience of ILO and would therefore welcome a comple­
mentary statement from the ILO representative indi­
cating concretely how that organization envisaged
co-operation with the Commission on Human Rights.

47. He hoped that the Commission on Human Rights
might benefit from the debate in progress, but feared
that the Commission's task would be most difficult with­
out very positive co-operation from ILO, UNESCO,
WHO and other specialized agencies, not only in re­
spect of the drafting of the rights concerned, but also
in respect of their implementation.
48. Mr. PHELAN (International Labour Organisa­
tion) hoped that the remarks he was about to make in
compliance with the request of the French representa­
tives would not be miscontrued as being anticipatory
of decisions which the Committee had yet to take.
49. The International Labour Organisation believed
that the specialized agencies concerned with the clauses
under discussion should co-operate with the Com­
mission on Human Rights in drafting appropriate
clauses in a "combined operation", for subsequent con­
sideration by the General Assembly.
50. Relations between the United Nations and ILO
were governed by the Agreement entered into by both.
In practice, ILO had closely co-operated with the Eco­
nomic and Social Council. He could assure the Com­
mittee that any resolution on relevant issues adopted
by the General Assembly or the Eonomic and Social
Council would inevitably enlist the ready and whole­
hearted co-operation of ILO. He assumed· that the

appropriate one of its own organs would act on behalf
of ILO in the co~operative enterprise of drafting suit­
able clauses on economic and social rights. He antici­
pated that existing instruments bearing on those topics
would be borne in mind during such drafting.
51. He might request the Committee at a later stage
to permit him to explain more specifically the attitude
of ILO on particular recommendations which might
be made after the conclusion of the current debate.
52. In reply to requests from Miss BERNARDINO
(Dominican Republic) and Mr. CASSIN (France),
the CHAIRMAN said that the texts of the statements
made by the UNESCO and ILO representatives would
be circulated to the members of the Committee.
53. Mr. KAYALI (Syria) thought that articles on
basic economic, social and cultural rights should form
an integral part of the draft covenant, which would be
incomplete without them. Such rights were the logical
sequel to the obligation set forth in the Charter to pro­
mote universal respect for, and observance of, human
rights and freedoms.
54. At the 295th meeting, the Belgian represent:ltive
had accused several of the delegations which favoured
the omission of a colonial clause of suffering from a
"resentment complex" vis-a.-vis their former colonial
rulers. Syria had long since forgiven the colonial Powers
for all the harm they had done to it. It was, however,
determined not to allow colonialism to continue and,
since the colonial clause would interfere with the appli­
cation of the draft covenant in Non-Self-Governing
Territories, his delegation had been opposed to it and
would continue to oppose it.
55. He would ask the colonial Powers to stop acting
as superiors in the discussion of economic, social and
cultural rights. All human beings were equal; they
were all born free and had the right to equal oppor­
tunity to live, work and develop in society. No one,
surely, could be said to enj oy the right to freedom of
thought, conscience and religion,. if the draft covenant
failed to provide that, irres:pecttve of race, colour or
sex, he was entitled to parttcipate in the government
of the State to elect and be elected, to work and not to
be exploited. The draft covenan~ should include.a pro­
vision granting everyone the nght to speak hiS own
language and to study and develop his own culture.
While that point might not be of great concern to the
inhabitants of countries enjoying those rights, it 'Yas
vital to the inhabitants of many Non-Self-Governmg
Territories where Administering Authorities were mak·
ing every ;ffort to stifle the use of indigenous langu~ges
and to substitute the language of the metropohtan
country. He wondered whe~her behind. the advice ?f
patience in respect of grantmg those nghts there did
not lurk the fear that their inclusion in the draft cove­
nant and implementa~ion might make t~e future po­
sition of certain colomal Powers rather difficult.
56. The opposition ?f some P?wers ~o the inclusion
of articles on essentIal economiC, SOCial and cultural
rights arose either from a superiority complex or from
a keen sense of selfish colonial inter~st: Some Pow.ers,
for example, could not accept the pnn~lple of.the. ng~t
to equal pay for eq~al work be?use Its .aPRhcatlOn m
the colonies would mterfere With explOltabon. Those
imbued with the colonial mentality could argue that i~
such rights were good for the inhabitants of the metro- i



General Assembly-Fifth Session-Third Committee190

poIitan country but not for the natives of the colorties.
However liberal and God-fearing they might be at
home the colonial Powers seldom practised virtue
abroad. He would mention, as an illustration of ~he
kind of thing he had in mind, that some 1,200 forel~
journals and publications had been placed ,on an officml
list of proscribed literature in French Morocco. Many
of the publications in question were in Arabic and
came from Arab countries.
57. French literature and culture were justly famous,
but the French authorities should permit people under
their administration to study and cultivate their own
cultural heritage. The peoples of Asia and Africa were
well aware that colonial policy in cultural matters was
almost the same everywhere: it was one of assimilation
and as such always aimed at some form of annexation
of the colony. Nor could the essence of colonialism be
made to disappear merely by substituting some other
word for the word empire.

58. His delegation regretted the omission of the right
to self-determination from the draft covenant. That was
a serious wrong, which should be redressed forthwith.

, Printed in U.S.A.

The right to self-determination was the first funda­
mental human right and was essential for the existence
of man as weIl as of society. The omission of that right
from the draft covenant would make it an incomplete
instrument.

59, The CHAIRMAN noted that the statement just
made had concluded the debate on the advisability of
including economic, social and cultural rights in the
draft covenant.

60. The CHAIRMAN suggested that the time limit
for the submission of draft resolutions on the draft first
international covenant on human rights and measures
of implementation should be 3 p.m. on Thursday, 2
November 1950.

It was so agreed.

61. The CHAIRMAN reported that the Fifth Com­
mittee would soon have to consider the financial impli­
cations of the refugee problem. He hoped therefore that
the Third Committee would take that into account when
considering its future work.

The meeting rose at 5.50 p.m.

A-394So-November 19S0-3,400

United!

~~NI

~~~E
fIFTH I

Official R--

llrafl firsl
8IId ml
C,3/531

! (conlin

I. Mr, B
~elegation,

completely
rights on tl
!Uarantee (
oolh on aCI

systems an
operation·

. ~referable

human rig~

implemenh
10 aim imrr
I'tion was
right of pe
for the im
right shou
non·goven
had develc
field.
2, Conce:
rights con
lhe most e
human rig
impartial I

them, wi1
General.

J: As rei
lion apprc
Secretary.
that a cc
should po
4, It al~1
between f--•Indicat




